
 
AMENDED AGENDA 

City of Lucas  
City Council Meeting  

January 4, 2018  
7:00 PM  

City Hall – Council Chambers 
665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  

 
Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, January 4, 2018 at 7:00 
pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be 
discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed 
Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at 
any time during the meeting. 

 
Call to Order 

 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input 

The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By 
completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the 
City Council meeting.  However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot discuss issues 
raised or make any decisions but may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion on a future agenda. 
 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) 
expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 
4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) announcements 
involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
2. Community Interest. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

Regular Agenda 
 
3. Discuss and provide direction regarding the regulation of short-term rentals within the City of 

Lucas. (City Attorney Joe Gorfida)    
 
 



4. Consider the funding for various elements of the Stinson Road/W. Lucas Road intersection 
and/or the Edgewood Drive to Stinson Road connection through the Bedell/Gipson tract and 
give the City Manager direction on the same. (Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton 
Foerster)  

 
5. Consider Ordinance No. 2014-12-00803 Amending Code of Ordinance Chapter 1, Article 

1.09, Parks and Recreation regarding:   
 

a) Composition of Park and Opens Space Board, qualification of members, regular meetings 
and quorum, election of officers, and filling of two alternate positions; 

b) Duties of Parks and Open Space Board; and 
c) Review of Park Rules and Prohibited Conduct in Parks.   

(Councilmember Tim Baney, City Manager Joni Clarke) 
 

Executive Session 
 
6. Executive Session:   
 

A. The City Council will convene into Executive Session as permitted under the Texas 
Government Code, Section 551.074, Personnel Matters, to discuss Board of 
Adjustment appointments. 

 
B. The City Council will convene into Executive Session as permitted under the Texas 

Government Code, Section 551.071, Consultation with Attorney, to seek legal advice 
from the City Attorney regarding GT Construction and the White Rock Trail project. 

 
7. Reconvene into open session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive 

Session. 
 
8. Adjournment.  
 

Certification 
 
I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board 
at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or 
before 5:00 p.m. on December 22, 2017.   
 

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for 
persons attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed 
to Stacy Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

January 4, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Citizens’ Input  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
  
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

January 4, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
2. Items of Community Interest.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA  



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

January 4, 2018 
 

Requester: City Attorney Joe Gorfida  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss and provide direction regarding the regulation of short-term rentals within the City of 
Lucas.   
 
Background Information:  
 
A presentation will be given by City Attorney Joe Gorfida regarding the regulation of short-term 
rentals. The Planning and Zoning Commission has been invited to attend this meeting to 
participate in the discussion.  This item was brought forward due to a recent event that occurred 
in Lucas regarding a short-term rental that hosted a large party that negatively affected a 
neighborhood.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
  
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

January 4, 2018 
 

Requester: Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider the funding for various elements of the Stinson Road/W. Lucas Road intersection and/or 
the Edgewood Drive to Stinson Road connection through the Bedell/Gipson tract and give the City 
Manager direction on the same. 
 
Background Information:  
 
On December 16, 2016, the City of Lucas engaged the professional services of Birkhoff, 
Hendricks & Carter, LLP for the design of the Stinson Road/W. Lucas Road intersection 
improvements.  The original concept included the following:  1) the widening Stinson Road to 
provide for two northbound lanes on approach to W. Lucas Road; 2) the addition of a westbound 
W. Lucas Road to southbound Stinson Road left turn lane; and 3) the improvement of the radii 
and drainage east and west of Stinson Road on the south side of W. Lucas Road (FM 1378).  
During the design, staff added a review of the drainage from Stinson Road to 685 W. Lucas 
Road. 
 
Initially no easements were contemplated as part of the project, because the widening of Stinson 
Road was planned to take place on the east side of the existing pavement using an existing 
easement.  As the design progressed, Birkhoff determined that with the NTMWD and Lucas 
waterlines on the east side of Stinson, there was not enough room to widen to the east.  The 
design efforts were changed to widen to the west side of the existing pavement.  A 0.177-acre 
easement measuring approximately 220 feet by 35 feet will be needed from the Allen Family of 
Faith Church (AFFC) property.   The first few hundred feet of Stinson Road sits on prescriptive 
right-of-way on private property. 
 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster has been in discussion with 
representatives from AFFC regarding the easement, but no easement agreement has been 
finalized.  AFFC is willing to execute the easement document depending on the price. 
 
The Stinson Road/W. Lucas Road intersection project will be ready to advertise for bidding later 
this month pending the outcome of the Texas Department of Transportation plan review. 
 
In the early months of 2017, development interest involving the 22-acre Bedell/Gipson tract of 
land adjacent to the west is of Lucas Christian Academy started to grow.  The Lucas Master 
Thoroughfare plans shows a connection through this tract connecting Edgewood Drive to Stinson 
Road.  The City will be responsible for 80% to 90% of the funding of the connection when it is 
constructed.  Unfortunately, staff at this time is unable to determine when and if the 
Bedell/Gipson tract will develop. 
 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

January 4, 2018 
 

Per the City Council’s request, Birkhoff has broken the bid package into two items:  1) Stinson 
Road widening only and 2) Stinson Road widening plus W. Lucas Road turn lane.  Birkhoff’s 
“opinion of probable construction cost” for the Stinson Road widening is $245,000, and for the 
Stinson Road widening plus W. Lucas Road turn lane, it is $470,000.  The cost will not be 
known until the project is bid on by contractors.  At our request, Birkhoff also has an opinion of 
probable construction cost for fixing the drainage and driveway at 685 W. Lucas Road east of 
Stinson Road; it is $50,000. 
 
Original Estimate -- $453,000 
There are three possible projects to proceed with and fund: 
 

1. Stinson Road Widening/Culvert only -- $245,000 
2. Stinson Road Widening/Culvert and W. Lucas Road turn lane -- $470,000 
3. If all the work is done at once, the cost could be $470,000 plus $50,000 for the driveway 

and drainage work at 685 W. Lucas Road Drainage/Driveway for a total of $520,000. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. AFFC Easement Drawing 
2. Location Map   

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The Stinson Road/W. Lucas Road intersection project is funded in the FY 17-18 budget in 
account 21-8210-491-124 in the amount of $493,000 for design and construction.   
 
Recommendation:  
 
W. Lucas Road/Stinson Road intersection has risen in importance during the past three years. 
Four roadway closing accidents and numerous complaints from residence using the intersection 
have raised concerns regarding the functionality of this intersection.  Several larger vehicles have 
fallen into the drainage ditches trying to make right turns.  School busses and trucks with 
stock/equipment trailers are unable to negotiate the turn given the narrowness of Stinson Road, 
the lack of sufficient radii, and stacking traffic. 
 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster recommends the following: 

1) proceed with Stinson Road Widening/Culvert only for $245,000, and 
2) do not proceed with the construction of the W. Lucas Road left turn onto Stinson Road 

and the 685 W. Lucas Road driveway/drainage. 
  



Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

January 4, 2018 
 

 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to… 





Ed
ge

w
o

o
d

D
rive

6
8

5
 W

. Lu
cas R

o
ad

Stin
so

n
 R

o
ad

C
o

u
n

try C
lu

b
 R

o
ad

AFFC

Bedell/Gipson Tract

W. Lucas Road

Ed
ge

w
o

o
d

 D
rive

 Exte
n

sio
n

 to
 Stin

so
n

R
o

ad

LFR



Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Request 

January 4, 2018 
 

Requester: Councilmember Tim Baney (Park and Open Space City Council Liaison) 
 City Manager Joni Clarke 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider Ordinance No. 2014-12-00803 Amending Code of Ordinance Chapter 1, Article 1.09, 
Parks and Recreation regarding: 

a) Composition of Park and Opens Space Board, qualification of members, regular meetings 
and quorum, election of officers, and filling of two alternate positions; 

b) Duties of Parks and Open Space Board; and 
c) Review of Park Rules and Prohibited Conduct in Parks. 

 
Background Information:  
 
During the December 21, 2017 City Council meeting, the City Council, as part of the discussion 
regarding the appointment and/or reappointment to City Of Lucas Boards and Commissions, 
requested that an item be placed on the January 4, 2018 agenda to discuss the Parks and Open 
Space Board.  Specifically, a question was raised regarding the frequency of the meetings and an 
additional statement was made asking if it would be helpful to clarify the goals and objectives of 
this Board.  The minutes from the past fiscal year and the draft minutes from the October 24, 2017 
meeting are being provided as a summary of the recent Park and Open Space Board activity. 
The next Park and Open Space Board meeting is scheduled for January 23, 2018 and the 
following topics are scheduled to be included on the agenda: 

• Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman  
• Minutes 
• Founders Day 
• Keep Lucas Beautiful Spring Cleanup Event 
• Tree City USA 
• Park Improvements (Community Park, Kenneth R Lewis Park, and Forest Creek Park)  
• Trail Segment from Willow Springs to Stinson 
• Review Planning Calendar and Establish Meeting Schedule for 2018  

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Ordinance No. 2014-12-00803 Amending Code of Ordinance Chapter 1, Article 1.09, 
Parks and Recreation 

2. Parks and Opens Space Board Minutes dated October 24, 2017 
3. Parks and Opens Space Board Minutes dated September 26, 2017 
4. Parks and Opens Space Board Minutes dated August 22, 2017 
5. Parks and Opens Space Board Minutes dated July 25, 2017 
6. Parks and Opens Space Board Minutes dated June 27, 2017 
7. Parks and Opens Space Board Minutes dated May 23, 2017 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Request 

January 4, 2018 
 

8. Parks and Opens Space Board Minutes dated April 25, 2017 
9. Parks and Opens Space Board Minutes dated March 28, 2017 
10. Parks and Opens Space Board Minutes dated February 28, 2017 
11. Parks and Opens Space Board Minutes dated January 24, 2017 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA  
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to draft an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinance Chapter 1, Article 1.09, 
Parks and Recreation as follows: 
 
 
 









































































Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

January 4, 2018 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
6. Executive Session.   
 

A. The City Council will convene into Executive Session as permitted under the 
Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, Personnel Matters, to discuss Board of 
Adjustment appointments. 

 
B. The City Council will convene into Executive Session as permitted under the 

Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, Consultation with Attorney, to seek 
legal advice from the City Attorney regarding GT Construction and the White 
Rock Trail project. 

 
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 



Item No. 07 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

January 4, 2018 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Reconvene into open session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive Session. 
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 


	00 - 01-04-2017 agenda amended
	AMENDED AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	January 4, 2018
	7:00 PM
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, January 4, 2018 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As a...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City ...
	Community Interest
	Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders...
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	Certification



	01 - Citizen Input
	02 - Community Interest
	03 - short term rental lease
	04 - Stinson Rd-W Lucas Rd Intersection cs
	04a - Prelim Stinson Esmt - AFFC
	04b - Stinson-W Lucas Location Map
	05 - Park Board CS
	05a - Parks ordinance and minutes
	06 - Executive Session cs
	07 - reconvene from Executive Session cs

